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Unit01 <be 動詞の現在形> 

 

Woman: Kelly, can you help me? 

Man: OK. What can I do for you? 

W: Please help me carry these boxes to the third floor. 

M: Sure. Are the boxes heavy? 

W: No, they are all light. There are just too many. 

M: I see. We need more help. Let’s ask the member of the sales department for help. 

W: OK. They’re not busy today. 

 

訳 

女：ケリー、ちょっと手伝ってもらえる？ 

男：オーケー。何をすればいい？ 

女：これらの箱を 3 階まで運ぶのを手伝って。 

男：いいよ。箱は重いの？ 

女：いいえ、全部軽いわ。ただ、たくさんありすぎて。 

男：そうか。もっと手伝いが必要だね。営業部のメンバーに手伝いを頼んでみよう。 

女：そうね。今日はあの人たち、忙しくないもの。 

男：それは良かった。 
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Unit02 <動詞の過去形> 

 

M: Were you in Brandy’s Bar last night? I thought I saw you. 

W: Yes, I was! Why didn’t you come over and talk to me? 

M: You were with someone. I didn’t want to bother you. Who are you with? 

W: It was only my brother. He was visiting me. 

M: Was he your brother? He was so much younger than you! 

W: Please don’t say that. He is only two years younger. 

 

訳 

男：ゆうべ、ブランディーズ・バーにいた？君を見た気がする。 

女：ええ、いたわ！どうして声を掛けてくれなかったの？ 

男：君は誰かと一緒だったよ。邪魔したくなかったんだ。一緒にいたのは誰？ 

女：あれは弟だよ。ちょうどうちに来ていたの。 

男：あの人、弟さんだったの？君よりだいぶ若かったね！ 

女：それを言わないで。2 つしか下じゃないんだから。 
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Unit03 <動詞の否定文> 

 

W: Your son was not in piano class yesterday. I hope he wasn’t sick. 

M: No, he wasn’t sick. He wasn’t able to practice all week, and he thought he wasn’t any good 

at playing his piece. 

W: Wasn’t he able to call me to tell me he wasn’t going? 

M: Oh, I’m really sorry. I guess he was not thinking about you. He was only thinking about 

not being embarrassed. 

W: I’m sorry, but you are going to have to pay for his missed lesson. I wasn’t going to charge 

you if he was sick, but he wasn’t. 

 

訳 

女：息子さんは昨日、ピアノの教室にいらっしゃいませんでした。ご病気でなかったならい

いのですが。 

男：いいえ、病気ではありませんでした。1 週間ずっと練習できず、曲が少しもうまく弾け

ないと思ったんです。 

女：来られないって電話をくれることは、できなかったのでしょうか。 

男：あの、ほんとにすみません。先生のことは思い浮かばなかったのでしょうね。恥ずかし

い思いをせずにいたいとしか、頭になかったのでしょう。 

女：申し訳ないですが、そうするとお休みになったレッスンの分をお支払いいただかなくて

はいけなくなるのです。ご病気なら請求しない予定でしたが、そうではなかったので。 
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Unit04 <be 動詞の疑問文> 

 

M: Jessy, you’re working very hard today. Let’s have a break. 

W: OK. I need some fresh air. Aren’t you hungry? 

M: Yes, a little. I missed lunch. 

W: That’s not good. Let’s go to the café. I want to have something, too. 

M: Do you mean something sweet, like cakes? 

W: No, I need something else. Wasn’t there a vegetable sandwich on their menu? 

M: Yes, they have vegetable, beef and cheese sandwiches. 

W: OK. Let’s go now! 

 

訳 

男：ジェシー、今日は一生懸命働いているね。休憩にしようよ。 

女：そうね。新鮮な空気を吸いたいわ。おなかすいてない？ 

男：うん、ちょっと。昼食を食べ損ねた。 

女：それは良くないわ。カフェへ行きましょう。私も何か食べたいし。 

男：ケーキとか、甘いものってこと？ 

女：うーん、何かほかのものを食べたい。あそこのメニューに野菜サンドイッチはなかった

っけ？ 

男：うん、野菜とビーフ、それからチーズのサンドイッチがある。 

女：そう。じゃあ行きましょう！ 
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Unit05 <一般動詞の現在形> 

 

W: Can I help you? 

M: Oh, yes. I want a coat for my daughter. 

W: OK. What color does she like? 

M: She likes red or pink. 

W: I see. How do you like this dark red one? 

M: It looks nice. Do you have that in size 7? 

W: Yes. This is the last one. 

M: Thank you. Can you put it in a pretty bag or something? 

W: Sure. Which color bag do you like? 

M: Pink, please. 

W: OK. Please wait a few minutes. 

 

訳 

女：何かお探しですか。 

男：ええ。うちの娘用のコートが欲しいのです。 

女：かしこまりました。お子さんは何色がお好きですか。 

男：赤かピンクが好きですね。 

女：承知しました。こちらの濃い赤のものはいかがですか。 

男：すてきですね。それ、サイズ 7 でありますか。 

女：はい。こちらが最後の１点です。 

男：ありがとう。きれいな袋か何かに入れてもらえますか。 

女：もちろんです。どの色の袋がよろしいですか。 

男：ピンクをお願いします。 

女：かしこまりました。少々お待ちください。 
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Unit06 <一般動詞の過去形> 

 

M: Where did you go on your summer vacation? 

W: I went to Hokkaido. 

M: Where in Hokkaido did you go? 

W: I went to Furano. The flowers were very beautiful. 

M: That sounds nice. What else did you do? 

W: I ate all kinds of fish in Kushiro. They were so good! 

M: That’s great! Was it cool in Hokkaido? 

W: Yes, it was. The air was so fresh there. 

 

訳 

男：この夏休みにはどこに行きましたか。 

女：北海道へ行きました。 

男：北海道のどこに行ったのですか。 

女：富良野へ行きましたよ。花がとてもきれいでした。 

男：良さそうですね。ほかには何をしましたか。 

女：釧路であらゆる種類の魚を食べましたよ。とてもおいしかったです！ 

男：それはいい！北海道は涼しかったですか。 

女：はい。空気がとても新鮮でした。 
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Unit07 <一般動詞の否定文> 

 

W: I don’t want to go to your family’s place for Christmas this year. I didn’t have a very good 

time last year. 

M: You didn’t? Don’t you want to see all my relatives? 

W: No, I don’t. I really don’ like your cousin Eve. She insulted me many times. 

M: I didn’t know that! You didn’t say anything. 

W: I didn’t want to spoil your good time. 

M: Well, we don’t have to go there this year. We can go to your family’s place instead. 

 

訳 

女：今年のクリスマスはあなたの実家にいきたくない。去年はあそこであまり楽しく過ごせ

なかったのよ。 

男：過ごせなかったって？僕の親戚たちの顔は見たくないのかい？ 

女：うん、見たくない。あなたのいとこのイブ、ほんと苦手だわ。あの人には、何回も失礼

なこと言われたし。 

男：それは知らなかった！君、何も言わなかったからなあ。 

女：あなたが楽しんでいるのを邪魔したくなかったのよ。 

男：まあ、今年は行かなくてもいいかもね。代わりに君の実家に行ってもいいし。 
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Unit08 <一般動詞の疑問文> 

 

W: Hello. What can I get you? 

M: What’s today’s lunch? 

W: We have chicken or beef sandwiches. 

M: Do the sandwiches have tomatoes in them? 

W: Yes, they do. We use fresh and delicious tomatoes. 

M: Oh, I see. I don’t like tomatoes. Can I have a beef sandwiches without tomatoes? 

W: Sure. Do you want anything else? 

M: Yes. A cup of coffee, please. 

W: OK. 

 

訳 

女：いらっしゃいませ。何になさいますか。 

男：今日のランチは何ですか。 

女：チキンかビーフのサンドイッチでございます。 

男：サンドイッチにはトマトが入っていますか。 

女：はい、入っています。新鮮でおいしいトマトを使っています。 

男：ああ、そうなんですね。トマトは好きではないんです。ビーフサンドイッチをトマト抜

きでお願いできますか。 

女：もちろんです。ほかに何かいかがですか。 

男：はい。コーヒーを１杯お願いします。 

女：かしこまりました。 
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Unit09 <疑問文の What> 

 

M: What do you think about Tomoaki’s proposal? 

W: It doesn’t sound practical to me. 

M: What makes you say that? I think it would be possible. 

W: How would we raise the money? It would cost too much. 

M: No, problem! We can borrow what we need from the bank. 

W: You should take a good look at the facts. 

M: What do you mean? 

W: How can you say, “We can borrow what we need,” with the economy the way it is? 

 

訳 

男：トモアキの提案をどう思う？ 

女：私には現実的には思えないわね。 

男：なんでそう言うの？僕は可能だと思うんだけど。 

女：どうやって資金を調達するの？コストが掛かりすぎるわ。 

男：大丈夫さ！必要な分は銀行から借りられるんだよ。 

女：現実をよく見た方がいいわよ。 

男：どういう意味？ 

女：景気がこんな状況なのに、「必要な分は借りられる」なんてどうして言えるかしら。 
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Unit10 <疑問詞の Who> 

 

W: Who are you bringing to that dinner party on Friday? 

M: I’m bringing Cathy. I always have a nice time with her. Who are you bringing? 

W: John. I enjoy his company. Who are the other guests? 

M: I’ve heard that one of the guests is a famous author! 

W: Really? Who? 

M: I don’t think I will tell you. It will be a surprise! 

 

訳 

女：金曜日の例の夕食会には、誰を連れてくるの？ 

男：キャシー。彼女とはいつも楽しく過ごせるからね。君は誰を連れてくる予定？ 

女：ジョン。彼と一緒だと楽しいの。ほかにはどんなお客が来るの？ 

男：お客の一人は有名作家だって聞いたよ！ 

女：本当？誰？ 

男：教えないでおこう。きっと驚くよ！ 
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Unit11 <疑問詞の Where> 

 

M: Hello, I’m John. You are...? 

W: Hi, I’m Nora. I’m a new face here. Nice to meet you. 

M: Nice to meet you, too. Where are you from? 

W: I’m from Canada. I came to Japan five years ago. 

M: Where do you live now? 

W: I live in Yokohama. It’s a little far from the office. 

M: Oh, I live in Yokohama, too. I use Hiyoshi Station. 

W: Reall? I live near Kikuna. We are neighbors. 

 

訳 

男：こんにちは、ジョンといいます。君は…？ 

女：どうも、ノラです。こちらでは新人なんです。よろしくお願いします。 

男：こちらこそよろしく。どちらのご出身ですか。 

女：カナダです。５年前に日本へ来ました。 

男：今はどちらにお住まいですか？ 

女：横浜に住んでいます。会社からはちょっと遠いですね。 

男：ああ、私も横浜に住んでいますよ。日吉駅を使っています。 

女：そんなんですか？私は菊名の近くに住んでいるんですよ。ご近所なんですね！ 
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Unit12 <疑問詞の When> 

 

W: When do you have time to work on that document? 

M: I can work on it today. 

W: Oh, great! 

M: I am waiting for one more file. It’s from John, but he is out of the office right now. 

W: When do you expect him to return? 

M: I think he will be back at his desk around 4 o’clock. I will start putting all the files together, 

and I should have everything ready by tomorrow. 

 

訳 

女：あの書類はいつ取りかかるの？ 

男：今日取りかかるよ。 

女：あら、良かった！ 

男：ファイルをあと１本待っている。ジョンからなんだけど、彼は今外出中なんだ。 

女：いつ戻ってきそうなの？  

男：4 時ごろには席に戻っていると思う。それからファイルを全部まとめ始めて、明日まで

にすべてが用意できるはずだ。 
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Unit13&21 <疑問詞の How①(状態・手段) / 助動詞(can・could)> 

 

W: What are you reading? 

M: I’m reading a book in English. I can’t speak English well. Do you have any good ideas? 

W: How do you usually study? 

M: I read many books. I also keep a diary in English. 

W: Do you listen to English on the radio? 

M: No, I don’t. It is too difficult for me. 

W: You can learn many useful worlds. Try it once. 

M: OK. Thank you. 

W: Think nothing of it. 

 

訳 

女：何を読んでいるの？ 

男：英語で書かれた本を読んでいるんだよ。英語ってあまりうまくしゃべれないんだよねえ。

何かいい方法ある？ 

女：普段はどういう勉強をしているの？ 

男：英語の本をたくさん読んでいるよ。それに、英語で日記もつけている。 

女：ラジオで英語を聞いている？ 

男：いや、聞かないなあ。僕には難しすぎるよ。 

女：役に立つ言葉をたくさん学べるのよ。一度やってみたら。 

男：分かった。ありがとう。 

女：どういたしまして。 
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Unit14 <疑問詞の How②(程度・数量)> 

 

M: You speak French very well. How many languages do you speak? 

W: I speak Japanese, English and French. 

M: That’s really great! How did you study them? 

W: Well, I just studied hard. 

M: I can only speak Japanese and English. 

W: Don’t worry. Your English is really good! 

M: Thank you. 

 

訳 

男：フランス語がとてもお上手ですね。何カ国語を話せるんですか。 

女：日本語と英語とフランス語を話します。 

男：実に素晴らしい！どうやって勉強したんですか。 

女：あら、一生懸命勉強しただけですよ。 

男：私は日本語と英語しか話せません。 

女：心配いりませんよ。あなたの英語はとても上手ですから！ 

男：ありがとうございます。 
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Unit15 <疑問詞の Whose> 

 

Mother: Whose shoes are these? I found them in the kitchen. 

Son: Oh, they’re mine. Thanks. 

M: You always leave things everywhere in the house. Take your things to your own room. 

S: All right, all right. 

M: See? Your books are on the table. Your bags are at the front door. Games in front of the 

television. Put them away right now! 

S: Now? I’m going out with my friends. 

M: No, do it now! You can go out after that. 

S: OK, OK. 

 

訳 

母：この靴は誰の？台所にあったわよ。 

息子：あ、それ僕の。ありがとう。 

母：あんた、いつも家中に物を置きっぱなしにするわね。自分の物は自分の部屋へ持ってい

きなさい。 

息子：分かった、分かった。 

母：ほらね？あんたの本がテーブルにある。かばんは玄関。ゲームはテレビの前。今すぐ片

付けなさい！ 

息子：今？友達と出掛けるんだけど。 

母：駄目、今やりなさい！その後だったら出掛けていいわ。 

息子：はい、はい。 
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Unit16 <疑問詞の Which> 

 

Woman: Jack, who is that man? 

Man: Which man do you mean? 

W: That tall man. He’s wearing a blue shirt. 

M: Oh, he’s Daniel. He’s from New York. 

W: When did he join our restaurant? 

M: About three months ago. He always makes very delicious dishes. 

W: What is he doing now? 

M: He’s cooking apples for a cake. His cakes are a must at the parties at our restaurant. 

 

訳 

女：ジャック、あの男性はどなた？ 

男：どの男性のことですか？ 

女：あの背の高い人。青いシャツを着ている人よ。 

男：ああ、彼はダニエル。ニューヨーク出身です。 

女：あの人、いつうちのレストランに入ったの？ 

男：3 カ月くらい前です。いつもすごくおいしい料理を作りますよ。 

女：今、何をしているのかしら。 

男：ケーキ用のリンゴを調理しています。うちのレストランのパーティーでは、彼のケーキ

が必需品なんですよ。 
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Unit17 <命令文> 

 

M: Oh, it’s already eight. I’m very hungry. 

W: Me too. Let’s have a short break and eat out. 

M: What do you have in mind? Sally’s Italian and Quick China are still open. 

W: Either is OK with me. Which do you like best? 

M: I like Sally’s best. But I already went there three times this week! 

W: Then let’s go to Quick China. Their set menus are cheap and delicious. 

M: That’s true. I love their egg soup. 

W: Let’s hurry. 

 

訳 

男：ああ、もう 8 時か。すごくおなかがすいたよ。 

女：私も。ちょっと休憩を取って、外へ食べに行きましょうよ。 

男：何か考えはある？サリーズ・イタリアンと、クイック・チャイナがまだ開いてるよ。 

女：私はどちらでもいいわよ。あなたが一番好きなのはどこ？ 

男：サリーズが一番好きだな。でも今週はもう 3 回もあそこへ行ったんだよね。 

女：それならクイック・チャイナへ行きましょう。あそこのセットものは安くておいしい。 

男：そうだね。あそこの卵スープが大好きなんだ。 

女：早く行きましょう。 
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Unit18 <進行形> 

 

W: Good morning. What are you doing? 

M: I’m choosing guests for the party. 

W: Is it difficult? 

M: No, it isn’t. I can finish it soon. 

W: That’s good. By the way, can I ask you some questions about our new restaurants? 

M: Sure. Go ahead. 

W: Are our restaurants doing well? I went to the one in Dale City yesterday. It was,.,. you 

know...  

M: Oh, sorry, I don’t really know about the sales. Mr. Fukuzawa knows about that. 

W: OK. Thanks anyway. 

 

訳 

女：おはようございます。何をしているんですか。 

男：パーティーのゲストを選んでいるんです。 

女：大変そうですか。 

男：いいえ、大丈夫です。すぐ済ませますよ。 

女：それは良かった。ところで、うちの会社の新しいレストランのことで、いくつか質問し

ていいですか。 

男：ええ、どうぞ。 

女：うちのレストラン、ちゃんとやっているんでしょうか。昨日、デール市の店舗に行った

んです。そこが…あれでね…。 

男：うーん、ごめんなさい。売上についてはよく知らないんです。そのことは福沢さんが知

っています。 

女：分かりました。ありがとう。 
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Unit19 <進行形の疑問文> 

 

W: Ted, are you organizing a welcome party for the newcomers? 

M: Yes, I am. We’re going to have it next month. 

W: Great. Where will it be held? 

M: At an Italian restaurant, Tanto, on Maine Street. 

W: Oh, I sometimes go there. The food’s great. 

M: Yes, that’s why we chose the place. By the way, will you be able to come? 

W: Well... I’m really busy these days, I should know tomorrow. 

M: OK. I hope you can join us. 

W: I’d like to. I’ll see what I can do. 

 

訳 

女：テッド、新人さんたちの歓迎会を準備しているの？ 

男：うん、している。来月開催する予定だよ。 

女：いいわね。どこで開かれるの？ 

男：メイン通りにあるタントというイタリア料理店で。 

女：ああ、そこなら私、時々行くの。お料理がおいしいわ。 

男：そうだね、それでその店を選んだのさ。ところで、君は来られそう？ 

女：うーん………最近すごく忙しいからな。明日になったら分かるはず。 

男：了解。君も参加できるといいな。 

女：そうしたいわ。なんとかできるよう考えてみるわね。 
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Unit20 <疑問詞+進行形> 

 

M: What are they doing now? 

W: Perhaps they are still talking about the same thing. 

M: Oh, no. Then things are not going well. 

W: No. They really need fresh new ideas. 

M: But aren’t they looking into the old plan again? 

W: It looks like it. We really don’t have much time. 

M: What can we do? 

W: I have no idea. 

 

訳 

男：彼らは今、何をしているんですか。 

女：おそらく、まだ同じことを話しているんでしょう。 

男：えっ、そんな。それじゃうまく行っていないんですね。 

女：ええ、これまでにない新しい案がぜひ必要なんです。 

男：でも、また古い計画を検討しているんじゃないですか。 

女：そのようですね。もう時間が残っていないのに。 

男：僕ら、どうすれば？ 

女：さっぱりわかりません。 
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Unit22 <助動詞 can/could を使った疑問文> 

 

M: Excuse me. Could you give us a few minutes? What do you think about these two plans? 

W: Let’s see... I like plan A. Who made it? 

M: Miss Tanaka did. 

W: Oh, I see. She always does a good job. 

M: You’re right. She’s very clever. And she always finishes her work very fast. 

W: I see. Can I ask her about another job? 

M: Yes, of course. What is it? 

W: I’m planning a new business. I need some fresh ideas. 

 

訳 

男：すみません。少々お時間をいただけますか。これら 2 つの計画をどう思われますか。 

女：そうですね………。私は A プランが好きです。誰が作成したのですか。 

男：田中さんです。 

女：ああ、そうなんですね。彼女はいつもいい仕事をしますね。 

男：おっしゃる通りです。彼女はとても頭がいいですよ。それに、いつもすごく早く仕事を

終わらせます。 

女：そうですか。彼女にほかの仕事について尋ねることはできますか。 

男：はい、もちろん。どんなことですか。 

女：新規事業を計画中なんです。新しい考えが必要なんです。 
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Unit23 <疑問詞+助動詞 can/could> 

 

M: When can I see you again? 

W: How about this Saturday afternoon? Hmm... Where can we meet？ 

M: How about the park? We could have a picnic by the river. 

W: Excellent idea! What can I bring? 

M: Don’t worry. I’ll prepare everything. 

W: How can I get in contact with you in case I can’t make it? 

M: Here is my business card. Just call me at this number. 

 

訳 

男：次はいつ会える？ 

女：今度の土曜の午後はどう？ええと………。どこで待ち合わせしましょうか。 

男：あの公園はどうかな。川のそばでピクニックができそうだから。 

女：いいアイデア！私、何をもっていこうかしら。 

男：ご心配なく。僕が全部用意するよ。 

女：もしも行けなくなったら、どうやって連絡すればいいの？ 

男：これ、僕の名刺。この番号に電話をくれればいいよ。 
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Unit26 <助動詞 must と have to (義務)> 

 

M: You look so busy, Alice. 

W: Yes, I have to finish this work by the end of the week. 

M: That’s too bad. I’ll probably be able to help you tomorrow. 

W: Really? Thank you so much. 

M: So, don’t worry. You won’t have to do it all by yourself. 

W: That’s good. 

M: OK. Let’s call it a day then! We have to catch the last train. 

W: Oh, is it that late? I must hurry. 

 

訳 

男：とても忙しそうだね、アリス。 

女：ええ、今週中にこの仕事を終わらせなくちゃいけないのよ。 

男：それは大変だね。明日ならたぶん手伝えるけど。 

女：本当？ありがとう。 

男：だから心配しないで。それ全部 1 人でやる必要はないよ。 

女：良かった。 

男：さて。だから今日はもう終わりにしよう！終電を逃さないようにしなくちゃ。 

女：えっ、そんなに遅いの？急がなくっちゃ！ 
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Uni27 <助動詞 shall(申し出・勧誘)> 

 

M: Are you going to be here much longer? 

W: Yes, I am. 

M: I’m going to get some light food now. Shall I get sandwiches or something for you, too? 

W: Hmm... shall we eat out together instead? 

M: I’m sorry. I don’t have time to do that. 

W: I see. OK, would you get me a hamburger and some tea then, please? 

M: Sure. 

W: Thanks a lot. 

 

訳 

男：まだしばらくここにいるつもり？ 

女：ええ、そのつもり。 

男：軽食を買いに行くところなんだけど。君にもサンドイッチかな何か買ってこようか。 

女：うーん……それよりも外で一緒に何か食べない？ 

男：ごめん、その時間はないんだ。 

女：そう。それなら、ハンバーガーと紅茶を買ってきてもらえるかしら。 

男：了解。 

女：助かるわ。 
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Unit28 <be going to do (予定)> 

 

W: Hello, Bill. 

M: Hi, Jessy. You look very happy. 

W: Yes, I’m going to take a trip to Kyoto with Saori. 

M: That sounds great. When are you going? 

W: Next weekend. You went there last year, didn’t you? 

M: No. I was going to go there last spring, but I couldn’t. I caught a bad cold and had to put 

it off. 

W: Bad luck! 

M: Well, anyway, have fun and take care! 

 

訳 

女：あら、ビル。 

男：やあ、ジェシー。すごくうれしそうじゃない。 

女：ええ、サオリと京都へ旅行に行くの。 

男：それはいいね。いつ行くの？ 

女：今度の週末。あなたは去年、京都に行ったのよね？ 

男：いいや。去年の春に行くつもりだったけど、行けなかったんだ。ひどい風邪をひいて、

延期しなきゃいけなかったんだ。 

女：残念だったわね！ 

男：まあ、とにかく、楽しんで、気を付けて行ってきてね！ 
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Unit29 <be going to do の疑問文> 

 

M: Let’s call it a day! How about having dinner together tonight? 

W: Sorry, I have to go right away. 

M: What are you going to do? 

W: I have a German class every Wednesday. 

M: Really? Have you ever been to Germany? 

W: Yes. But it was only a short stay, so I want to got there again sometime. 

M: Where have you visited in Germany? 

W: I’ve only been to Berlin. If possible, I’d like to visit Germany at Christmas next time. 

 

訳 

男：今日はここまでにしよう！今夜一緒に食事はどう？ 

女：ごめん、すぐ帰らなきゃいけないの。 

男：何をする予定なの？ 

女：毎週水曜日はドイツ語の授業があるの。 

男：本当？今までにドイツへ行ったことはある？ 

女：ええ、でも短期滞在だったから、いつかまた行きたい。 

男：ドイツではどこへ行ったことがあるの？ 

女：ベルリンに行っただけ。できれば、次はクリスマスの時期にドイツへ行ってみたい。 
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Unit30 <will (意志・未来)> 

 

M: I ordered a personal computer last week, but it hasn’t been delivered yet. Was it shipped? 

W: I’m sorry. I’ll check our records. Can you tell me the order number. 

M: Yes, it’s SH00714. 

W: Thank you. Well, your order was shipped from our factory on Monday. Your address is 

1149 Maine Street, right? 

M: Oh, my! I must have written my previous address. My present address is 45 Lancaster 

Street. 

W: OK. I’ll change your address and we’ll ship your computer again. You should receive it no 

later than Thurs afternoon. 

M: That’s good. Thank you. 

 

訳 

男：先週パソコンを注文したのですが、まだ配達されていないんです。出荷されましたか。 

女：申し訳ございません。弊社の記録を確認致します。注文番号を教えていただけますか。 

男：はい、SH00714 です。 

女：ありがとうございます。ええと、ご注文のお品は月曜日に工場から出荷されました。ご

住所はメイン通り 1149 番地で正しいですね？ 

男：しまった！以前の住所を書いたに違いない。今の住所はランカスター通り 45 番地です。 

女：分かりました。住所を変更しまして、パソコンは再送いたします。遅くとも木曜日の午

後にはお受け取りになれるはずです。 

男：良かった。ありがとうございます。 
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Unit31 <will を使った疑問文> 

 

W: Will you take a vacation this year? 

M: Yes. I didn’t have any vacation last year, so I can take an extra-long one this year. 

W: Where will you go? 

M: Thailand. Everyone says it is the best place to relax. 

W: How long will you stay there? 

M: Two entire weeks! 

W: Wil you stay in Bangkok? 

M: Yes, but just for a few days. I am hoping to get out of the city and visit some of those 

beautiful islands. 

W: Sounds wonderful. Will you fit me inside our suitcase? 

 

訳 

女：今年は休暇を取るの？ 

男：うん。去年は全然休暇を取らなかったから、今年は特別⾧い休みをとれるよ。 

女：どこへ行くの？ 

男：タイ。ゆっくりするには最適なところだって、みんな言うようね。 

女：どれくらいの間いるの？ 

男：まるまる 2 週間！ 

女：バンコクには泊まるつもり？ 

男：うん、でも２、３日だけ。都市を出て美しい島々をいくつか訪ねたいと思っている。 

女：素敵だね。あなたのスーツケースに私を入れてくれない？ 

 


